
 Agenda

Page 1

Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board (1)
Time and Date
10.00 am on Wednesday, 14th October, 2020

Place
This meeting will be held remotely.  The meeting can be viewed by pasting this link into your 
browser: https://youtu.be/t_Nc_kOdx7A

Public Business

1. Apologies and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes  

(a) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2020  (Pages 3 - 6)

(b) Matters Arising  

4. Financial Position as a Result of COVID-19  (Pages 7 - 12)

Briefing note 

5. Feedback from Member Survey (New Ways of Working)  

Presentation

6. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues  (Pages 13 - 16)

Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator

7. Any other items of Public Business  

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as matters of 
urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Private Business
Nil

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House Coventry

Tuesday, 6 October 2020

Notes:1)The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Carolyn 
Sinclair, Governance Services, Council House, Coventry, alternatively information about this 
meeting can be obtained from the following web link:
                  http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/t_Nc_kOdx7A
http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk/


Page 2

2) Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Carolyn 
Sinclair as soon as possible and no later than 9am on the day of the meeting giving their 
reasons for absence and the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the 
meeting as their substitute.

3) Scrutiny Board Members who have an interest in any report referred to this meeting, 
but who are not Members of this Scrutiny Board, have been invited to notify the Chair by 12 
noon on the day before the meeting that they wish to speak on a particular item. The Member 
must indicate to the Chair their reason for wishing to speak and the issue(s) they wish to 
raise.

Membership: Councillors F Abbott, R Auluck, J Blundell, R Brown, B Gittins, G Hayre, 
R Lakha, J Mutton (By Invitation), J O'Boyle (By Invitation), T Sawdon and R Singh (Chair)

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Carolyn Sinclair 
e-mail: carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board (1) held 

at 10.00 am on Wednesday, 9 September 2020

Present:
Members: Councillor R Singh (Chair)

Councillor F Abbott
Councillor R Auluck
Councillor J Blundell
Councillor R Brown
Councillor G Hayre
Councillor R Lakha

Other Members: Councillor J Mutton, Cabinet Member for Strategic Finance 
and Resources 

Employees:
D Ashmore, Director of Housing and Transformation 
V Castree, Law and Governance 
J Fowles, Public Health 
R Moon, Director of Property Services and Development 
J Newman, Director of Law and Governance 
S Newing, Director of Human Resources
C Sinclair, Law and Governance

Apologies: Councillor B Gittins and T Sawdon 

Public Business

1. Declarations of Interest 

In respect of Minute 3 (New Ways of Working), Councillor F Abbott declared that 
her husband was an employee of the City Council. 

2. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2020 were agreed as a true 
record.  There were no matters arising. 

3. New ways of working 

The Board received a presentation encompassing updates on Public Health, 
returning to work in offices, digital first and support to elected members.

Members questioned officers and received responses on a number of aspects 
arising from the presentation including the following:

Public Health 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



– 2 –

 Impact on areas of the City identified as having a higher rate of infections 
and how this was managed.

 Plans in place should rates of infection continue to increase in the City.

Return to Work
 The re-opening of the Friargate building for staff
 Support for staff who are both returning to the office and continuing to work 

from home 
 Communicating changes to staff

Digital First
 Changes to the customer offer to improve online access, including 

webchats
 Customer Services call rates
 Staff app functionality 

Support to Elected Members
 Members Survey responses 
 LGA guidance for Member training 
 Member Casework pilot scheme

In respect of the Member Casework pilot scheme, the Board agreed that it would 
be beneficial that the pilot shortly to commence in Sherbourne Ward be widened to 
include any Councillor who would be interested in taking part. 

Following discussion of matters raised during the presentation, the Board thanked 
attendees for their contributions and agreed to receive update reports at the 
meeting to be held on 14 October 2020 on the analysis of the Elected Members 
Survey and an update report on the re-opening to staff of One Friargate.   

RESOLVED that the Board note the content of the presentation and agreed:

(a) To receive further updates at the 14 October 2020 meeting on the 
Elected Members survey outcomes and the process of re-opening One 
Friargate to staff. 

(b) That participation in the pilot scheme on Members Casework shortly 
to be undertaken by Sherbourne Ward Councillors be extended to 
other Councillors. 

4. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 

The Board noted the Work Programme with the addition of the following items 
to be included on the 14 October agenda:

 Feedback from the Elected Member Survey 
 Update on the re-opening of the Friargate building 

5. Any other items of Public Business 

There were no other items of public business.

Page 4



– 3 –

(Meeting closed at 11.40 am)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 Briefing Note

To   Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1                  Date  14th October 2020

Subject      Financial Position as A Result of COVID-19  

Purpose of the Note
1. This note responds to the item in the Scrutiny Board 1 work programme to review the 

financial position of the Council as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Recommendation
2. Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 are requested to note the contents of the 

report and make any appropriate recommendations to the Cabinet Member.

Information/Background
3. Key aspects that form the context of this subject include:

 Some elements of the financial impact will not crystallise for some time (e.g. the 
impact on Business Rates).

 It is difficult to separate some of the Covid impacts from the Council’s underlying 
position (e.g. the number and cost of looked after children).

 The world continues to be affected markedly significantly by COVID-19 and the 
financial affects remain fluid and subject to future events.

4. The note will consider the following areas:
 The 2019/20 Outturn position.
 2020/21 Quarter 1 financial reporting.
 Latest Covid Impact within the September return to Government.
 Business Grants
 Impact of the national funding position. 
 2021/22 Financial Issues and Strategy 

2019/20 Financial Outturn Position
5. The impact of Covid and the conditions surrounding it only became significant in the final 

weeks of the 2019/20 financial year. As a result, the financial impacts were relatively 
modest by subsequent standards at outturn stage. However, the Council did begin to incur 
some immediate expenditure as part of its emergency response and more strikingly saw 
immediate impacts upon income sources like car parking, some of which fell almost to 
nothing almost overnight as a result of lockdown measures. The outturn position also 
included some assumptions about the effect on collection rates for some of its outstanding 
debtor accounts although such calculations were broad estimates at best.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

6. In overall terms the outturn position included an estimated financial impact totalling £2.9m 
in the last few weeks of the year. These were funded from the first tranche of emergency 
funding provided by Government for this purpose. The outturn position approved by Cabinet 
carried forward the remainder of this grant to fund COVID costs expected within 2020/21. 
In addition, the underlying outturn position (non-Covid related) was £5.5m and Cabinet 
agreed to contribute this to a Reset and Recovery reserve. The financial position over the 
remaining course of 2020/21 will dictate whether this reserve will be needed to directly fund 
Covid costs or whether it might be available to support the Council’s forward-looking 
financial strategy.

2020/21 Quarter 1 Financial Reporting
7. By the time the Council was reporting its financial position for the first quarter of 2020/21 

the Government had announced three tranches of general emergency funding for Covid-
related expenditure totalling £24.4m for Coventry. Of this amount £2.9m had already been 
utilised as part of the 2019/20 Outturn position (see above) leaving £21.5m available. 

8. The position reported to Cabinet in August showed a forecast revenue overspend for the 
year of £28.2m incorporating £26.1m of Covid pressures but before the application of 
COVID-19 emergency funding. After the use of this grant, the net overspend was £6.7m. 
At this point it had become clear that the Government was also intending to make available, 
grant to cover part of the Covid-related income loss being experienced by councils. The 
Council’s initial forecast was that it would be able to claim between £2m and £3m for this 
Covid Income Compensation which would bring down the forecast overspend accordingly 
to c£4m. This is set out in the table below.

Table 1: Quarter 1 Financial Reporting Position

Covid 
Related

£m

Non-Covid 
Related

£m

Overall 
Total

£m

Quarter 1 Forecast Overspend 26.1 2.1 28.2

Emergency Covid Funding Available (21.5) (21.5)

Net Overspend 4.6 2.1 6.7

Covid Income Compensation (planning 
estimate) (2.5) (2.5)

Remaining Overspend 2.1 2.1 4.2

9. This level of reported overspend is not unusual in the early part of the reporting cycle and 
on this basis the Director of Finance did not indicate to Cabinet that a Section 114 notice 
would need to be issued. Section 114 notices impose restrictions on any non-essential 

Page 8



3

expenditure and some councils across the country were indicating that they might be 
approaching the point where such action may be required. 

Latest Covid Impact Reported to Government
10. Through 2020/21 all councils have been required to report their forecast of the financial 

impact of Covid in monthly returns to Government. The August return showed an overall 
impact of £33m. Within this £6m related to estimated Business Rates and Council Tax 
(Collection Fund) losses for the year although accounting convention ensure that these 
losses are not taken into account until the following financial year. This means that such 
losses will need to be included in the budget setting forecasts for 2021/22. 

Table 2: Estimated 2020/21 Covid Impact as at August

£m £m

Social Care Including PPE and external provider 
payments

8

Other Services Including Housing, Shielding and 
Temporary Mortuary Costs

7

Total Expenditure 15

Sales Fees and Charges 6

Property Rents and Commercial Income 6

Total Income 12

Business Rates and Council Tax 6

Overall Estimated Impact 33

11. Excluding Collection Fund losses the August figures indicate an in-year financial impact of 
£27m. This compares to the figure of £26m reported at Quarter 1 (see Table above). It is 
important to understand that the forecasting of such costs and income losses remains very 
challenging and assumption sensitive. They are likely to continue to fluctuate through the 
remainder of the year. Some examples of these challenges are considered below:

 Any income earning services for which cash is not paid at the point of delivery will 
rely on estimates of future collection rates and assumptions about bad and doubtful 
debt rates. An area such as Commercial Property will be affected by the degree to 
which customers with outstanding debts remain in business and are able to honour 
their financial liabilities to the Council. This is more difficult to manage and subject 
to greater volatility in the current climate of economic uncertainty.

 It is difficult to distinguish in almost all areas, the impact of Covid compared with the 
circumstances that may have existed if Covid had not occurred. For instance, the 
number of referrals within Children’s Services increased significantly after lockdown 
conditions eased through the Summer months. However, it is not possible to 
distinguish to what degree the rise in numbers was due to lockdown conditions or 

Page 9



4

to what extent the numbers would have risen anyway but were suppressed during 
lockdown. If such information were known this would have a bearing on future 
projections of looked after children numbers and costs.

 The future longevity and depth of Covid conditions will affect any predictions of 
future financial impacts. A return to normalcy would have a relatively clear and 
traceable effect on the use and financial position of car park income for instance, 
but without knowing when and to what extent such conditions will return has a 
marked impact on predictions of future returns.

Business Grants and Business Rates Reliefs 
12. One of the Chancellor’s early measures in the wake of COVID-19 was to extend Business 

Rates relief to all businesses with a rateable value below £51,000 and all businesses in the 
retail, hospitality and leisure sectors. This has resulted in reliefs totalling £49m, 100% of 
which have been processed by the Council.

13. In addition, small business grants and retail, hospitality and leisure business grants of either 
£10,000 or £25,000 were announced in the first weeks of the pandemic with a significant 
logistical effort aimed at processing payments a quickly as possible through local councils. 
Coventry City Council has subsequently processed £48m of such grants to Coventry 
businesses which represents 90% of those eligible per rating records. This level of 
performance was in line with figures achieved at a national level. The scheme relied upon 
businesses applying for the grant and significant publicity was undertaken, including a letter 
to every potentially eligible business. Rating information was only one measure of business 
eligibility for the grants as, for instance, national smaller shop chains only applied on a few 
chosen shops to keep within the State Aid limits. The scheme has now been closed by the 
government.

14. A further Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund of £2.7m to 471 non-Business Rate 
paying businesses that have suffered a significant fall in income due to coronavirus has 
also been allocated and paid out by the Council.

15. A total of £4.5m has been made available as part of the government backed CBILS 
(Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Scheme) through Coventry and Warwickshire 
Reinvestment Trust (£2.5m from CCC and £2m in funds which the Council manages on 
behalf of CWLEP).

16. All the Council’s business support functions have remained open during lockdown by 
moving to online working. A £9.2m extension has been secured recently to the Council’s 
European funded business support programmes which will now run until mid-2023 and 
officers are working with funders to tailor these schemes to challenges businesses are 
facing because of Covid.

17. Also a specialist grants’ pot has been added to the Council’s ERDF business support 
programme which funds:

 Access specialist professional advice to assist recovery after Covid-19. For example 
advice in relation to human resources, accountants, legal, financial, IT / digital, etc. 
and /or 

Page 10



5

 Purchase of minor equipment to adapt or adopt new technology in order to continue 
to deliver business activity or diversify.

Over £500k has been allocated to 209 business through this scheme which is now fully 
utilised and we are making the case to government for further cash for this grant pot which 
has been very popular.

Impact of the National Funding Position
18. The Government has moved away from its very early commitment to do ‘whatever it takes’ 

to manage the financial impact of Covid to one of requiring councils to ‘share the burden’ 
of the pandemic. Although the Council’s forecast Covid related shortfall for 2020/21 is not 
as significant as those of other councils it is currently facing not only this shortfall, but also 
the carried forward Collection Fund impact in Table 2 plus any other ongoing Covid effects 
(either legacy issues if Covid has largely subsided by next year or continued effects if it is 
still largely prevalent).

19. The workload and diversionary impact of the pandemic plus the uncertainty it has added 
into the overall national financial position has caused a delay to medium term financial 
planning position of many councils including Coventry. Work is underway to develop the 
Council’s budget strategy for 2021/22 although this work is facing a uniquely challenging 
set of circumstances.

20. There is now some uncertainty over whether the Government will be able to fulfil its plans 
to set out a multi-year spending review following the postponement of the Autumn budget 
and setting out of a Winter Economy Plan. In addition, the Government has postponed a 
Fair Funding Review for local government and further reform of Business Rates ahead of 
2021/22. The cancellation of the Autumn Budget for 2020 also means that currently, there 
is no clear timetable for when councils will receive indications of the overall financial 
envelope for local government funding next year nor the draft settlement for individual 
councils. Recent precedents suggest that this information may not be known until late 
relatively close to the end of 2020.

21. As well as the core funding position for local government, a provisional settlement would 
contain a range of other information on which financial planning decisions would be based. 
These include the level of continued grant support for Adult Social Care; the level and 
trajectory of the New Homes Bonus; a range of smaller specific grants support local 
government services including homelessness, benefits administration and Adult education; 
the level of any Council Tax referendum limits; any new measures to allow councils to 
spread collection fund losses over multiple years; any continuation of support relating to 
ongoing Covid expenditure or income losses; and other policy measures such as the 
National Living Wage which the Council would feel the effects of as both an employer and 
a buyer of services.

22. This set of circumstances combined with the uncertainty for councils of the direct impacts 
of Covid mean that they are facing a perfect storm of uncertain financial information heading 
into their budget setting processes. Most of these measures have a potential range of 
outcomes which can vary by millions of pounds between the best-case and worst-case. As 

Page 11



6

a result, the council’s potential overall best-case and worst-case scenarios are tens of 
millions of pounds adrift from each other. 

Financial Issues and Strategy

23. The Council’s Cabinet will receive informal briefings through the Autumn which will 
incorporate the latest forecasts and detailed proposals for balancing the 2021/22 Budget. 

24. In terms of the broad range of measures to be progressed through October, this will include 
the following:

 A technical review of all major assumptions to refine what are considered to be the 
reasonable range of financial outcomes in each.

 Identify in-year (2020/21) expenditure control measures to identify and capture any 
deliverable underspends that can then be freed up for use in 2021/22.

 Scrutinise reserve flexibility to identify one-off resources that could be used to match 
against one-off expenditure pressures in 2021/22.

 Identify any initial expenditure pressures emerging through 2020/21 and test the 
extent to which these can be managed down.

 Revisit approved savings that are due to begin or increase in 2021/22 and test 
whether these are deliverable.

 Identify any new budget flexibility or potential new savings including any from key 
workstreams including Commercialisation, Digitalisation and Place Based working.

25. As the work develops this will lead to the formal Pre-Budget Report to be considered by 
Cabinet prior to Christmas. A presentation to accompany this note will be given at the 
meeting of Scrutiny board setting out some of the financial parameters that officers are 
currently considering ahead of member briefing. 

Paul Jennings

Finance Manager Corporate Finance

Page 12



SB1 Work Programme 2020/21

1

Please see page 2 onwards for background to items

9 September 2020
- New Ways of Working
14 October 2020
- Financial position Post-Covid-19
- Outcome of Member Survey into New Ways of Working
- Reopening Friargate – Verbal Update
Date to be Confirmed (was 18 November 2020)
- Medium Term Financial Strategy
20 January 2021
- Reserve Balances
24 February 2021
- Digital First
17 March 2021
- Commercialisation
-
2020/2021
-
- Business Rates
- 2019-20 Capital Programme
- Social Value and Sustainability Policy
- Procurement Strategy
- One Coventry Values
- Coventry City Council Apprenticeships
 

Last updated 02/10/20

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



SB1 Work Programme 2020/21

2

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

9 September 
2020

- New Ways of Working To consider new ways of working at CCC following acceleration of 
the programme post Covid-19. Customer Service Directorate, 
Children’s Services and a range of directorates. Including training 
and development.

Cllr J Mutton/ Cllr 
Hetherton / Susanna 
Newing

14 October 
2020

- Financial position Post-
Covid-19  

To scrutinise CCC’s budgetary position in comparison to the 
planned 2020/21 budget, including what mitigations have taken 
place and additional funding received from Government; the 
impact on commercial investments; any savings made during the 
pandemic period and the impact on the 2021/22 budget process.

Cllr J Mutton / Barry 
Hastie / Paul 
Jennings

- Outcome of Member 
Survey into New Ways of 
Working

To receive an update of emerging themes from the Member 
Survey and next steps.

Julie Newman/ Cllr 
Hetherton/ Cllr Lloyd

- Reopening Friargate – 
Verbal Update

Following their meeting on 9th September, SB1 requested an 
update on the reopening of Friargate which was due to take place 
on 14th September.

Richard Moon

Date to be 
Confirmed 
(was 18 
November 
2020)

-  Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

To discuss the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy prior to 
its approval through the political process.
Please note the date of the meeting will move to enable SB1 to 
consider the MTFS before it goes to Cabinet. Normal reporting 
timescales have changed due to Covid-19.

Cllr J Mutton  /Barry 
Hastie/ Paul 
Jennings

20 January 
2021

- Reserve Balances To receive an update on the position of Council Reserves and 
identify recommendations for the Cabinet Member.

Cllr J Mutton / Paul 
Jennings

24 February 
2021

- Digital First To scrutinise the Council’s Digital Transformation agenda and the 
outcomes of the digital assessment undertaken by SOCITIM

Cllr Hetherton / Paul 
Ward/ David 
Ashmore

17 March 
2021

- Commercialisation To look at opportunities to maximise income. Cllr J Mutton / Barrie 
Hastie

-
2020/2021 -

P
age 14



SB1 Work Programme 2020/21

3

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

- Business Rates To discuss any proposed changes to Business Rates when any 
new information becomes available. 

Cllr J Mutton / Paul 
Jennings

- 2019-20 Capital 
Programme

For the Board to receive a written report on the Capital 
Programme. 

Cllr J Mutton / Paul 
Jennings

- Social Value and 
Sustainability Policy

Following the meeting on 4th July, it was agreed to review the 
Social Value Policy. The new policy will be brought to SB1 for 
scrutiny.

Cllr J Mutton / Mick 
Burn

- Procurement Strategy The Procurement Strategy is being revised and this meeting will 
enable SB1 to input into its development before it is agreed by 
Cabinet/ Council.

Cllr J Mutton / Mick 
Burn

- One Coventry Values To update on the development of the One Coventry Values. Cllr J Mutton / 
Susanna Newing

- Coventry City Council 
Apprenticeships

To consider the apprenticeships being offered by the City Council. 
To look at how the young people employed are supported to get 
the maximum value from their placements.

Cllr J Mutton / Grace 
Haynes

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2020
	4 Financial Position as a Result of COVID-19
	6 Work Programme and Outstanding Issues

